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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors has the pleasure in presenting the audited consolidated financial statements
of Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) ("the Company") and its subsidiary
(collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and supply of cement, paper sacks and plastic ropes.
The Group invests its surplus funds in investment securities, private equities and properties. The
Group operates from Sharjah, United Arab Emirates and sells its products in the UAE and certain
other countries in the Middle East, Africa and Asia.

Results for the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Income Statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is presented
on page 8 and Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Group as of 31 December 2021 is presented on
page 10 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has reported sales of AED 493,894 thousand (2020: AED 431,627 thousand) while the
net Loss for the year was AED 33,802 thousand (2020: Loss AED 70,636 thousand).
Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2021 was AED 1,318,371 thousand (2020: AED 1,320,601
thousand).

Going concern basis

The Board of Directors has reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources and
support to continue its operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Transactions with related Parties

The consolidated financial statements disclose related party transactions and balances in note 26.
All transactions are carried out as part of our normal course of business and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Auditors

Ernst & Young were appointed as external auditors for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, and they have expressed their willingness to continue in office once elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

(N
W_—.

7 March 2022
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors has the pleasure in presenting the audited consolidated financial statements
of Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) ("the Company") and its subsidiary
(collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and supply of cement, paper sacks and plastic ropes.
The Group invests its surplus funds in investment securities, private equities and properties. The
Group operates from Sharjah, United Arab Emirates and sells its products in the UAE and certain
other countries in the Middle East, Africa and Asia.

Results for the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Income Statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is presented
on page 8 and Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Group as of 31 December 2021 is presented on
page 10 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has reported sales of AED 493,894 thousand (2020: AED 431,627 thousand) while the
net Loss for the year was AED 33,802 thousand (2020: Loss AED 70,636 thousand).
Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2021 was AED 1,318,371 thousand (2020: AED 1,320,601
thousand).

Going concern basis

The Board of Directors has reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources and
support to continue its operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Transactions with related Parties

The consolidated financial statements disclose related party transactions and balances in note 26.
All transactions are carried out as part of our normal course of business and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Auditors

Ernst & Young were appointed as external auditors for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, and they have expressed their willingness to continue in office once elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

(N
W_—.

7 March 2022

Saaiall Ly all ol HLe¥l &Ll — alg I of g uill gold Ve Bl aadl 2 s YAAY 10 e
P.O. Box 2083, Al Hisn Tower - 14" Floor, Bank Street, Rolla - Sharjah, United Arab Emirates
Tel.: 06-5695666/5684681/5686102-03, Fax: 5683171 O TAYIV) :uslé (+1-01407171/0TALTAN /0TATY « Y- ¥ s dila
E-mail: scidcho@eim.ae, Website: www.sharjahcement.com




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHARJAH CEMENT & INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CO. (PJSC)

Report on the audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development
Co. PJSC (the “Company”), and its subsidiary (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (the “IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have determined
the matters below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHARJAH CEMENT & INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CO. (PJSC)

Report on the audit of the Consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How the Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Classification and valuation of Assets held for sale

(refer to note 11 of the consolidated financial statements)

In December 2018, the Group divested 50% of The work that we performed to address this key
the investment in Autoline Industrial Parks audit matter included the following procedures.

Limited (AIPL) for a total gross consideration
of AED 39,526 thousand which was receivable
over 33 months.

In 2020, the Group signed the cancellation
agreement with Autoline Industries for sale of
its 50% share in AIPL. Accordingly, the profit
on sale of shares as well as the finance income
total amounting to AED 8,456 thousand
recognized in 2019 had been reversed in 2020.
and the cost of investment was transferred
back to held for sale investment.

During the current year, AIPL has entered into
a joint development agreement with a
developer to develop the land for industrial
purposes. For this the due diligence has been
completed and this transaction has been
approved by the BOD.

AIPL and the developer have indicated their
willingness to buyout the investment once the
legal formalities to develop the land are
completed.

Since significant judgement is involved in
classification and valuation of the same, this is
considered as key audit matter.

We have read the board minutes for approval
of selling the assets and correspondence with
third party for exit of investment. As the
intention is to sell the investment, it has been
classified as asset held for sale in the
consolidated financial statements.

We have reviewed the valuation of land for
which proposal is received for development.
We observed that the valuation of land is more
than the carrying amount of asset held for sale.

We have verified the shares held by the
Company in AIPL as of the reporting date.

We have assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures of the transaction in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



EY

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHARJAH CEMENT AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CO. (PJSC)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key audit matter

How the Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Existence and valuation of inventories

(refer to note 13 of the consolidated financial statements)

Inventories comprises 12% of Group’s
total assets as on 31 December 2021.

Inventories on hand comprise of purchased
raw materials consisting mainly of
limestone, coal, slag, gypsum, iron ore and
bauxite, and work in progress comprising
mainly of clinkers which are stored in
purpose built shed and stockpiles. Since
the weighing of these inventories is not
practicable, management assesses the
reasonableness of the quantities on hand at
the year-end by obtaining measurements of
the stockpiles and converting these
measurements to unit of volumes by using
an angle of repose and the bulk density.

Management has relied upon expert for
physical verification of inventory. Due to
the significance of the inventory balances
and related estimations involved in
existence and valuation of the same, this is
considered a key audit matter.

The work that we performed to address this key
audit matter included the following procedures.

We inquired of the management to understand
the procedures undertaken as a part of the
inventory review and assessment of allowance
for slow moving inventory.

We evaluated the analysis and assessment
made by the management with respect to the
carrying value and slow and obsolete
inventories considering the expected demand
and market value related to the finished goods.

We observed the physical inventory count
performed by the Group. We assessed the
reasonableness of the management’s
measurements of stockpiles during the
physical count and reviewed the conversion to
the unit of volumes. We also obtained and
reviewed the inventory count report of an
external surveyor’s for the major stock items.

We tested the valuation of year end inventory
for a sample of selected inventory items,
including review of judgements considered
regarding obsolescence and net realizable
value.

We tested the ageing of the inventory for the
sample of selected inventory items.

We have also assessed the adequacy of the
management’s disclosure in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHARJAH CEMENT AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CO. (PJSC)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other information
Other information consists of Management’s Report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association and of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHARJAH CEMENT AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CO. (PJSC)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)
We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHARJAH CEMENT AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CO. (PJSC)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), we report that for the
year ended 31 December 2021:

i)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects,
with the applicable provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and the UAE Federal
Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended);

the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account
of the Group;

the Group has maintained proper books of account;

investments in shares and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2021, are disclosed in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements;

note 26 reflects material related party transactions and the terms under which they were
conducted;

based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended
31 December 2021, any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015
(as amended) or of its Articles of Association which would have a material impact on its
activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2021; and

note 31 to the consolidated financial statements reflects the social contributions made during the
year.

For Ernst & Young

Signed by:

Ashraf Abu Sharkh
Partner

Registration No: 690

8 March 2022

Sharjah, United Arab Emirates

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Notes AED’000 AED’000
Revenue from contract with customers 6 493,894 431,627
Cost of sales (501,165) (436,989)
Gross Loss (7,271) (5,362)
Administrative and general expenses (20,937) (18,463)
Selling and distribution expenses (6,737) (6,146)
Investment income/(loss) 7 10,709 (6,314)
Impairment loss on investment properties 10 - (11,325)
Finance expenses 8 (12,447) (17,543)
Reversal of gain on sale of assets held for sale 11 - (8,457)
Other income 2,881 2,974
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 8 (33,802) (70,636)
Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Group (33,802) (70,636)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED) 22 (0.056) (0.116)

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Investments carried at FVTOCI — net change in fair value 12
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Change in fair value of interest rate swap 12
Other comprehensive Income/(loss) or the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

2021

AED’000

(33,802)

30,104

1,468

31,572

(2,230)

(2,230)

2020
AED 000

(70,636)

(22,545)

(2,054)

(24,599)

(95,235)

(95,235)
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes AED’000 AED’'000
ASSETS
Non-curent assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 917,023 970,643
Investment properties 10 250,849 259,664
Investments carried at FVTOCI 12 164,563 125,614
1,332,435 1,355,921
Current assets
Inventories 13 220,003 236,690
Trade and other receivables 14 185,431 183,743
Investments carried at FVTPL 12 33,660 22,651
Cash in hand and at bank 15 13,795 26,643
Asset held for sale 11 47,293 45,016
500,182 514,743
TOTAL ASSETS 1,832,617 1,870,664
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 19 608,254 608,254
Statutory reserve 20 334,091 334,091
General reserve 21 226,373 226,373
Fair value reserve 12 18,764 (12,314)
Retained earnings 130,889 164,197
Total equity 1,318,371 1,320,601
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings 17 113,876 183,306
Provision for staff terminal benefits 18 27,955 27453
141,831 210,759
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 106,394 97,489
Short term borrowings 17 266,021 241,815
372,415 339,304
Total liabilities 514,246 550,063
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,832,617 1,870,664

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on 7 March 2022

Q\\ - 7 it

& ¥
Chairman 1\ WW\L,@L-”’ CWutive =

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes AED’000 AED’000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (33,802) (70,636)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 9 69,777 69,296
Depreciation on investment properties 10 8,815 8,794
Provision for staff terminal benefits 18 2,210 2,355
Allowance for expected credit loss 14 (10) 750
Provision for inventory (net off) 13 5,838 (1,351)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (53) -
Reversal of gain on sale of assets held for sale 11 - 8,457
(gain)/ loss on change in fair value of investments carried at FVTPL 12 (4,965) 3,148
Realised loss on disposal of investments carried at FVTPL 12 199 769
Rental income from investment properties 10 (6,024) (1,053)
Dividend income 7 (3,995) (5,132)
Impairment loss on Investment properties 10 - 11,325
Finance expense 8 12,447 17,543
50,437 44,265
Changes in:
- inventories 13 10,849 122,394
- trade and other receivables 14 (1,678) 85,585
- trade and other payables 16 10,374 (86,134)
Staff terminal benefits paid 18 (1,708) (3,621)
Net cash generated from operating activities 68,274 162,489
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9 (16,157) (34,046)
Additions to investment 11 (2,277) -
Additions to investment properties 10 - (7,893)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 53 -
Purchase of investments carried at FVTOCI 12 (20,997) (2,021)
Proceeds from disposal of investments carried at FVTOCI 12 2,152 1,926
Dividend income 7 3,995 5,132
Rental income from investment properties 10 6,024 1,053
Purchase of investments carried at FVTPL 12 (11,010) (8,027)
Proceeds from disposal of investments carried at FVTPL 12 4,767 9,139
Net cash used in investing activities (23,450) (34,737)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan repaid 28 (422,188) (553,233)
Loan taken 28 376,963 449,174
Interest paid 8 (12,447) (17,543)
Net cash used in financing activities (57,672) (121,602)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,848) 6,150
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15 26,643 20,493
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 13,795 26,643
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash in hand and at bank 15 13,795 26,643

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

11



Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Statutory General Proposed Fair value Retained
capital reserve reserve dividend reserve earnings Total
AED’ 000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED 000
At 1 January 2021 608,254 334,091 226,373 - (12,314) 164,197 1,320,601
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year - - - - - (33,802) (33,802)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 31,572 - 31,572
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - 31,572 (33,802) (2,230)
Other equity movement
Transfer of realised gain from fair value reserve to
retained earnings on disposal of investments
carried at FVTOCI (note 12) - - - - (494) 494 -
Total other equity movement - - - - (494) 494 -
Transactions with owners of the Group
Contribution by and distributions to owners
Directors’ fee (note 26) - - - - - - -
Total transactions with owners of the Group - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 608,254 334,091 226,373 - 18,764 130,889 1,318,371

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sharjah Cement and Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Statutory General Proposed Fair value Retained
capital reserve reserve dividend reserve earnings Total
AED’ 000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED 000
At 1 January 2020 608,254 334,091 226,373 - 12,324 234,794 1,415,836
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year - - - - - (70,636) (70,636)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (24,599) - (24,599)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (24,599) (70,636) (95,235)
Other equity movement
Transfer of realised gain from fair value reserve to
retained earnings on disposal of investments
carried at FVTOCI (note 12) - - - - (39) 39 -
Total other equity movement - - - - (39) 39 -
Transactions with owners of the Group
Contribution by and distributions to owners
Directors’ fee (note 26) - - - - - - -
Total transactions with owners of the Group - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 608,254 334,091 226,373 - (12,314) 164,197 1,320,601

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

1 REPORTING ENTITY

Sharjah Cement and Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) (“the Company”) was incorporated in Sharjah, United Arab
Emirates in 1977 under an Emiri Decree issued by H.H The Ruler of Sharjah and has since been registered as a public joint
stock company. The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 2083 Sharjah, United Arab Emirates. The shares of the
Company are listed on Abu Dhabi Securities Market. . Shareholders have resolved at the Annual General Meeting held on
30 April 2020 to delist the company’s shares from Kuwait Stock Exchange and authorized the Board of Directors to complete
all formalities for the delisting. Kuwait Capital Market Authority has approved the voluntary withdrawal of the Company
from Kuwait Stock Exchange and 26 August 2021 was the last date for trading of Company’s shares on Kuwait Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“the current year”) comprises the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”).

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and supply of cement, paper sacks and plastic ropes. The Group invests its
surplus funds in investment securities, private equities and properties. The Group operates from Sharjah, United Arab
Emirates and sells its products in the UAE and certain other countries in the Middle East, Africa and Asia.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and comply with relevant Articles of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015
(as amended).

Federal Law Decree No. 32 of 2021 which repeals and replaces Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended) on Commercial
Companies was issued on 20 September 2021 and is effective from 2 January 2022. The Group is in the process of reviewing
the new provisions and will apply the requirements thereof no later than one year from the date on which the new Decree
Law came into effect.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 4.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for investments carried
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), investments carried at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in United Arab Emirate Dirham (“AED”), which is the Group’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Information about judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is discussed in note 29.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a
management team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including
Level 3 fair values. The management team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Measurement of fair values (continued)

If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the management team assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the
level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in valuation
techniques as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest

level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in note 10 — Investment
properties and note 12 — Investments.

Basis of consolidation
The Group comprises of the Company and the under-mentioned subsidiary company.

Subsidiary Principal activity Country of incorporation Ownership
2021 2020
Gulf Rope & Plastic Rope and plastic United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
Products Co. LLC products

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls
an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

»  Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

»  EXxposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

*  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

»  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
*  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-

controlling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

15



Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

3 CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December
2020, except for the adoption of new standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January 2021.

New and amended standards and interpretations
The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 as noted below:

o Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
e Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ to provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-

related rent concession is a lease modification. The effective date is 1 June 2021.

The amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2021, but do not have any material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

3.1 Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the financial statements are disclosed below.

Contents Effective date

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3 1 January 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16 1 January 2022
Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to 1AS 37 1 January 2022

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as

A 1 January 2022
a first-time adopter
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities 1 January 2022
IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 1 January 2022

The Group has not early adopted any other standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are
not yet effective. Management is currently assessing the impact of adopting the above standards, amendments and
interpretations on the Group’s financial statements in the year of their initial application, and intends to adopt these
new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise (refer also note 3).

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combination using the acquisition method when the control is transferred to the
Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net
assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is
recognized in the profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue
of debt or equity securities.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any
related non-controlling interest and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

The Group recognises revenue based on a five-step model as set out in IFRS 15:

Step 1 Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties
that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2 Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract

with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3 Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or service to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5 Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is
met:

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

2. The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

3. The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time
at which performance obligation is satisfied.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services, it creates a contract
asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. A contract asset becomes contract receivable
when the Group’s right to the consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer
exceeds the amount of revenue recognised, this gives rise to a contract liability.

In determining the transaction price, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of
significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When a significant financing component is identified the Group is required to adjust the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of the time value of money. This is because the Group is required to recognise revenue
at an amount that reflects the price that the customer would have paid for the promised goods or services if the
customer had paid in cash for those goods or services when (or as) they transfer to the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by customers at their premises. For
contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Therefore, the amount of revenue
recognised is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on the historical data. In these circumstances,
a refund liability and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognised.

The right to recover returned goods asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory less any expected
costs to recover goods. The refund liability is included in other payables and the right to recover returned goods is
included in inventory. The Group reviews its estimate of expected returns at each reporting date and updates the
amounts of the asset and liability accordingly.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised as other revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

Dividend income and return on investments in securities

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment is
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably).

Finance expenses and income

The Group’s finance expenses comprises interest expenses on borrowings and bank charges. Finance income
comprise of unwinding of discount for receivable on sale of investment. Finance income or expense is recognised
using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to:

— the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

— the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the liability.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are

included in the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2021

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for its intended use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses and not depreciated until such time the assets are
available for use.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are available for use. Depreciation is
calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss. Land is not
depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Life (years)

Asset

Freehold buildings 20-25
Plant and machinery 5-30
Furniture and equipment 5
Motor vehicles 3-5
Quarry costs 15

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Reclassification to investment properties

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as
investment property considering that the accounting policy for investment property is the ‘Cost Model’ in accordance
with IAS 40.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.
Investment properties are accounted for using the cost model. Under the cost model, investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of investment property is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day maintenance
of investment property are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The depreciation on buildings is charged on straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of 25 years. The
depreciation method, estimation of useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date. Land is not
depreciated.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the property) is recognised in profit or loss.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost is
determined as follows:

Raw material, stores and spares and semi-finished goods purchased
The cost includes insurance, freight and other incidental charges incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their present location and condition. Valuation is determined on a weighted average basis.

Raw materials produced locally, work in progress and finished goods
The cost includes cost of direct materials and direct labour plus an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity. Valuation is determined on a weighted average basis.

Assets held for sale
Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and
liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, investment property,
which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held-for-sale or held-for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized or depreciated, and any equity
accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVTOCI — debt investment;
FVTOCI — equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model
for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

— itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
asat FVTPL:

— itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired
at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
Financial assets at FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

Debt investments at FVTOCI calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised

Equity investments at FVTOCI as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCl and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL ifitis classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not a
financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair
value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with
highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are
expected to offset each other.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the hedging reserve. The effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in fair
value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge.

Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as the
hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The change in fair value of the forward element of forward
exchange contracts (‘forward points’) is separately accounted for as a cost of hedging and recognised in a costs of
hedging reserve within equity.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item such as
inventory, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserve and the cost of hedging reserve is included directly in
the initial cost of the non-financial item when it is recognised.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserve and the cost of hedging
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged expected future cash
flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is
terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting for cash
flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in the hedging reserve remains in equity until,
for a hedge of a transaction resulting in the recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-financial
item’s cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to profit or loss in the same
period or periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in
the hedging reserve and the cost of hedging reserve are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. When the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance expenses.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss and presented within
finance costs.
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Foreign currency (continued)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated into AED at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated into AED at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains
control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI. When the Group disposes of
only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment
Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) on:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
e debt investments measured at FVTOCI

The Group also recognises loss allowances for ECLs on lease receivables, which are disclosed as part of trade and
other receivables.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLS:

e  debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

e other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables (including lease receivables) and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 120 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
o the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
o the financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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Impairment (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at
FVTOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets. For debt securities at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.

Impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event that have occurred after the impairment
loss was recognised. For financial assets that are measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss account.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual customers, the Group has a policy of
writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is 365 days past due based on historical experience of
recoveries of similar assets. For corporate customers, the Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment
property and inventories) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a
business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Provision for staff terminal benefits

The provision for staff terminal benefits is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the UAE Labour Law and
is based on the liability that would arise if the employment of all staff were to be terminated at the reporting date.
These are classified as long term liabilities.

With respect to its UAE national employees, the Group makes contributions to the General Pension and Social Security
Authority. These contributions are calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are
limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its shares. The calculation of basic EPS has been based on
the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding.
The calculation of diluted EPS has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and
weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. Weighted average number of shares outstanding is retrospectively adjusted to include the effect of
any increase in the number of shares without a corresponding change in resources.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components.

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

e creditrisk;
e liquidity risk; and
e market risk

Risk management framework

The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The board of directors has established the Board Audit and Compliance Committee , which
is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly
to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Board Audit and Compliance Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Group. Board Audit and Compliance Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit.
Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to Board Audit and Compliance Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investments in debt
securities. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure.
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Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit
worthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Exposures within each
credit risk grade are segmented by nature of customers’ operations and an ECL rate is calculated for each segment
based on delinquency status and actual credit loss experience over the past three years. These rates are multiplied by
scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables. Scalar factors are based on GDP forecast and industry outlook.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of AED 13,795 thousand at 31 December 2021 (2020: AED 26,643
thousand). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated
Al to Baa3, based on Moody’s corporation ratings. Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a
12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its cash and
cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties and accordingly, the
expected credit loss is negligible.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other liquid investments at an amount in excess
of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices —
will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as the Group has transactions denominated in AED, or
USD, a currency to which AED is currently pegged.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is primarily on its borrowings with banks. The interest rate on the
Group’s financial instruments is based on market rates. Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference
to an agreed-upon notional principal amount.

Financial assets and liabilities that are subject to fair value risk are the ones with fixed interest rate. Financial assets
and liabilities that are subject to cash flow rate risk are the ones with floating interest rate.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from marketable securities measured at fair value. Management of the Group monitors the mix
of debt and equity securities and between quoted and unquoted in investments portfolio to maximize investment
returns, which is the primary goal of the Group’s investment strategy. In accordance with this strategy certain
investments are designated as fair value through profit or loss because their performance is actively monitored and
they are managed on a fair value basis.
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Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of share capital, reserves and retained earnings. The
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. The Board
seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. There was no change to the Group’s approach to
capital management during the current year.

6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue consists of the following:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Type of revenue
Sale of goods 493,894 431,627
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Geographical markets
Within UAE 375,745 335,508
Outside UAE 118,149 96,119
Total revenue from contracts with customers 493,894 431,627
Timing of revenue recognition
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000

Goods transferred at a point in time 493,894 431,627

Contract balances

A contract asset is Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods that has been transferred to the customers.
The Group has trade receivable of AED 174,911 thousand (2020: AED 178,506 thousand) and short term advances
received from customers to supply the goods are AED 2,067 thousand (2020: AED 340 thousand) as at 31 December
2021.

Performance obligations
The performance obligation on sales of goods is satisfied upon delivery and payment is generally due within 150 to
210 days from delivery (2020: 150 to 210 days).
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7 INVESTMENTS INCOME/(LOSS)

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Gain/(loss) on change of fair value of investments carried at
FVTPL (note 12) 4,965 (3,148)
Realised loss on disposal of investments carried at FVTPL (note 12) (199) (769)
Operating loss on investment properties (note 10) (2,791) (7,741)
Dividend income 3,995 5,132
Profit distribution from funds 4,740 154
Others (D) 58
10,709 (6,314)
8 LOSS FOR THE YEAR
The loss for the year is stated after charging:
2021 2020
AED’000 AED 000
Staff costs:
Wages and salaries 36,015 33,234
End of service benefits (note 18) 2,210 2,355
Other employee benefits 18,156 13,459
56,381 49,048
Finance expenses:
Interest on bank borrowings 10,391 15,860
Bank charges 2,056 1,683
12,447 17,543
Cost of sales:
Material consumed 256,191 239,628
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and investment

properties (note 9 and 10) 78,592 78,090
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold
land
AED’000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 23,852
Additions -
Disposals -
Transfer -

Transfer from investment properties (note 10) -

At 31 December 2020 23,852
At 1 January 2021 23,852
Additions -
Disposals -
Transfer -
At 31 December 2021 23,852

Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 -
Charge for the year -
At 31 December 2020 -
At 1 January 2021 -
Charge for the year -
On disposals -
At 31 December 2021 -

Net book value
At 31 December 2021 23,852

At 31 December 2020 23,852

Freehold
buildings
AED’000

427,243
349

1,890

429,482

429,482
138

429,620

241,069
14,080

255,149

255,149
14,116

269,265

160,355

174,333

Plant and
machinery
AED’000

1,485,483
449

10,796

1,496,728

1,496,728
2,733

30,436

1,529,897

708,622
51,030

759,652

759,652
51,719

811,371

718,526

737,076

Furniture,
and
equipment
AED’000

39,630
1,742
27
3,688

45,087

45,087
538

45,625

35,550
2,613

38,163

38,163
2,615

40,778

4,847

6,924

Motors
vehicles
AED 000

45,291

45,291

45,291
2,764
(974)

47,081

42,451
1,509

43,960

43,960
1,262
(974)

44,248

2,833

1,331

Quarry
costs
AED’000

4,364

4,364

4,364

4,364

3,749

3,813

3,813
65

3,878

486

551

Capital
work-in
progress
AED’000

7,783
31,506

(12,7_13)

26,576

26,576
9,984

(30,4-36)

6,124

6,124

26,576

Total
AED’000

2,033,646
34,046

3,688

2,071,380

2,071,380
16,157
(974)

2,086,563

1,031,441
69,296

1,100,737

1,100,737
69,777
(974)

1,169,540

917,023

970,643
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Cost of sales 65,899 65,175
Administrative and general expenses 3,878 4,121

69,777 69,296

a) Capital work in progress included in property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2021 was relating to
expenditure for plant & machinery in the course of construction.

b) At 31 December 2021, the cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that is still in use amounted
to AED 473 million (2020: AED 452 million).

c) There are commercial mortgage and assignment of insurance policy in respect of plant & machinery in relation
to banking facilities obtained by the Group (note 17).

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Properties
Undeveloped Developed under
land Land Buildings  development Total

AED’000 AED 000 AED 000 AED 000 AED 000

Cost:
At 1 January 2020 78,270 18,497 70,728 151,264 318,759
Additions - - 7,893 - 7,893
Transfer (24,969) 24,969 145,710 (145,710) -
Transfer to property, plant
and equipment (Note 9) - - - (3,688) (3,688)
At 31 December 2020 53,301 43,466 224,331 1,866 322,964
At 1 January 2021 53,301 43,466 224,331 1,866 322,964
Additions - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 53,301 43,466 224,331 1,866 322,964
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2020 686 - 42,495 - 43,181
Charge for the year - - 8,794 - 8,794
Impairment loss 62 - 9,397 1,866 11,325
At 31 December 2020 748 - 60,686 1,866 63,300
At 1 January 2021 748 - 60,686 1,866 63,300
Charge for the year - - 8,815 - 8,815
At 31 December 2021 748 - 69,501 1,866 72,115
Net book value:
At 31 December 2021 52,553 43,466 154,830 - 250,849
At 31 December 2020 52,553 43,466 163,645 - 259,664
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10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Net operating loss from investment properties is as below

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Rental income derived from investment properties 11,848 5,436
Direct operating expenses (5,824) (4,383)
Rental income net off direct operating expenses 6,024 1,053
Depreciation charge (8,815) (8,794)

Net loss arising from investment properties (2,791) (7,741)

Investment properties are carried at cost and the fair value of the investment properties as of 31 December 2021,
based on valuation undertaken by an independent qualified value, amounted to AED 397,533 thousand (2020:
AED 407,725 thousand). The fair value of the investment properties has been determined using level 3 fair value.

There is a registered mortgage and assignment of fire insurance policy over an investment property in relation to
banking facilities obtained by the Group (note 17).

Impairment of investment properties

Management has made impairment assessment based on the difference between projected rental income and actual
inflows and involved an external valuer for valuation of investment properties. Based on the assessment, market value
of the properties are not less than carrying value. Based on the assessment made an impairment loss of AED nil (2020:
AED 11,325 thousand) was recorded during the year.

11 ASSET HELD FOR SALE

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Opening balance 45,016 22,508
Transferred from other receivables (refer note (ii) below) - 22,508
Additions made during the year (refer note (iii) below) 2,277 -
Closing balance 47,293 45,016

(i) During the year 2018, the board of directors has resolved to divest the investment in Autoline Industrial Park
Limited (AIPL) within next twelve months. In December 2018, the Group divested 50% of the investment in
Autoline Industrial Parks Limited for a total gross consideration of AED 39.08 million which was receivable
over 33 months. The net consideration after discounting and deduction of the expected cost to sell was
AED 28.4 million resulting in a gain of AED 5.9 million. During the year 2020, unwinding of discount
amounting to AED 2.5 million had been recognized.

(i)  During the year 2020, Due to Covid-19 pandemic and resultant economic slowdown, buyer expressed his
inability to continue with the scheduled payments towards the consideration for purchase of AIPL shares as
his cash flows were seriously impacted. After negotiations, both parties signed the termination agreement to
terminate the agreement for sale of company’s 50% shares in Autoline Industrial Park Limited. Consequently,
gain recognized on sale of shares amounting to AED 8.4 million (gain of AED 5.9 million & discounting
impact AED 2.5 million) was reversed and the amount due from the buyer was reclassified from other
receivables to reinstate the Asset held for sale at its original cost.

(iii)  During the current year, company paid an amount of AED 2.3 million towards subscription of 858,231 equity
shares of AIPL. Allotment of shares was completed in 2021 and the formalities of dematerialization of shares
is under process as on 31 December 2021.

(iv) The Board of Directors of AIPL has approved a joint development of the land with a developer and the
regulatory procedures for the joint development of the land are being completed.

(v)  Management is in active discussion with potential buyers and expect to sell the investment within next 12 to
15 months. Management is of the view that carrying value is not expected to be higher than the fair value less
cost to sell.
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12 INVESTMENTS

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Non-current investments
Investments carried at FVTOCI
Investment in quoted securities 135,561 100,610
Investment in unquoted securities 29,002 25,004
164,563 125,614
Current investments
Investments carried at FVTPL
Investment in quoted securities 33,660 22,651
Closing balance 198,223 148,265
Quoted:
UAE 138,139 101,641
Outside UAE 31,082 21,619
Unquoted:
UAE 1,972 2,027
Outside UAE 27,030 22,978
198,223 148,265
Investments carried at FVTOCI
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
As at 1 January 125,614 148,064
Purchases made during the year 10,997 2,021
Net change in fair value 30,104 (22,545)
Disposals during the year (2,152) (1,926)
As at 31 December 164,563 125,614
Cumulative changes in fair value reserve of investment carried at FVTOCI
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
As at 1 January (10,260) 12,324
Net change in fair value during the year 30,104 (22,545)
Less: transfer to retained earnings upon disposal (494) (39)
As at 31 December (i) 19,350 (10,260)
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12 INVESTMENTS (continued)

Change in fair value of interest rate swap

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000

As at 1 January (2,054) -
Change in fair value during the year 1,468 (2,054)
As at 31 December (ii) (586) (2,054)

Fair value reserve as at 31 December (i) + (ii) 18,764 (12,314)

Sensitivity analysis — equity price risk

The Group’s investments in quoted equity securities are listed on the Dubai Financial Market (DFM), Abu Dhabi
Security Exchange (ADX), Kuwait Stock Exchange (KSE), National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE) and Bahrain
Stock Exchange (BSE). For quoted investments classified as FVTOCI, a 10 % increase/(decrease) in all of these stock
exchanges at the reporting date would have increased OCI/(decreased OCI) by AED 13,556 thousand (2020:
AED 10,100 thousand).

Unquoted investments are carried at fair value of shares in the respective investee companies as at 31 December 2021.
In determining the fair value of these investments, management engage professionally qualified external valuers to
measure the fair value. The fair value of these investments is determined based on market comparable information
related to the investee companies and on net assets value.

Investments carried at FVTPL
Movement during the year as follows:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
As at 1 January 22,651 27,680
Purchases made during the year 11,010 8,027
Fair value gain/(loss) (note 7) 4,965 (3,148)
Loss on disposal of investments (note 7) (199) (769)
Disposals during the year (4,767) (9,139)
As at 31 December 33,660 22,651
13 INVENTORIES
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Raw materials 76,200 94,360
Work in progress and semi-finished goods 57,920 59,066
Finished goods 15,110 11,209
Stores and spares 97,751 96,227
246,981 260,862
Less: provision for slow moving inventories (30,231) (24,393)
216,750 236,469
Goods-in-transit 3,253 221
220,003 236,690
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13 INVENTORIES (continued)

Movement in the provision for slow moving inventories is as follows:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
At 1 January 24,393 25,744
Add: provided during the year 9,838 2,149
Less: written back during the year* (4,000) (3,500)
30,231 24,393
*Group has consumed the old stock of stores & spares during the year ended 31 December 2021.
14  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
AED’000 AED 000
Trade receivables 174,911 178,506
Less: allowance for impairment (6,227) (6,237)
168,684 172,269
Prepayments and advances to suppliers 12,099 5,844
Deposits and other receivables 4,648 5,630
185,431 183,743
Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
At 1 January 6,237 5,487
Add: provided during the year - 750
Less: reversal during the year (10) -
6,227 6,237
Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables are as follows:
Past due
Neither past 1-90 91 -180 Above
Total due nor impaired days days 180 days
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
2021 174,911 29,823 57,167 64,145 23,776
32,372

2020 178,506 30,402 49,295 66,437
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15 CASH IN HAND AND AT BANK

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Cash in hand 543 437
Cash at bank 13,252 26,206
13,795 26,643

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Trade payables 53,305 38,874
Accruals and other payables 38,094 28,218
Unclaimed dividend payable to shareholders 13,357 14,191
*Payable against construction of property, plant and equipment 1,638 16,206
106,394 97,489

*Payable mainly comprise of retentions payable related to the construction of plant & machinery.

17 BANK BORROWINGS

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Long term borrowings:
Term loans 172,632 242,062
Less: short term portion of term loans (58,756) (58,756)
Long term portion of loan 113,876 183,306
Short term borrowings:
Short term loans 207,265 183,059
Current portion of term loans 58,756 58,756
266,021 241,815
379,897 425,121

(i) All facilities bear interest rates at prevailing market rates.
(i) Bank borrowings are secured by:

o Demand promissory note for AED 266 million in favor of the bank as a security against the bank facilities

o Registered mortgage & assignment of insurance policy over an investment property for an amount of
AED 92 million. (note 10)

o Assignment of insurance policy in favour of one of the banks in UAE for an amount of AED 80 million in
respect of plant and machinery on Paari Passu basis. (note 9)

o Commercial mortgage over financed captive power plant for an amount of AED 145 million

(Non- Notarized) and assignment of insurance policy in respect of captive power plant for an amount of
AED 134 million in favour of one of the banks in UAE. (note 9)
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17  BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

(iii)  Bank borrowing agreements contain various restrictive covenants and require the Group to maintain certain
minimum amounts of working capital, equity and financial ratios. Testing for compliance with the financial
covenants is done annually on 31 December. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had complied with the
financial covenants as specified in the facility letters with the banks.

(iv)  The Group has unused credit facilities of AED 161 million (2020: AED 159 million) as at 31 December 2021.

(v)  The Group has short term borrowing with average interest rate of 2.5% to 3.5% p.a. (2020:2.5% to 3.50% p.a.)
as at 31 December 2021.

18 PROVISION FOR STAFF TERMINAL BENEFITS

2021 2020
AED’000 AED 000
At 1 January 27,453 28,719
Provision made during the year 2,210 2,355
Payments made during the year (1,708) (3,621)
At 31 December 27,955 27,453
19 SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
AED’000 AED 000
Authorised, issued and fully paid up:

608,253,746 shares of AED 1 each (2020: 608,253,746 shares of AED 1 each) 608,254 608,254

20 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Article 239 of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and the Company’s Articles of Association,
a minimum of 10% of the net profit of the Group is allocated every year to a non- distributable statutory reserve. Such
allocation may be ceased when the statutory reserve equals half of the paid up share capital of the Group. This reserve
is not available for distribution except in circumstances stipulated by the law. The Board of Directors have not
proposed any further transfer to the statutory reserve as the reserve is in excess of 50% of the paid up share capital
(2020: 50%).

21 GENERAL RESERVE

As per Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year has to be transferred to general reserve until
the reserve reaches 25% of the paid up share capital. This reserve is available for distribution at the recommendation
of the directors and approval of shareholders in an ordinary general meeting. The Board of Directors have not
proposed any further transfer to the general reserve as the reserve is in excess of 25% of the paid up share capital
(2020: 25%)).
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22  EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to owners of the Group and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2021, calculated as follows:

2021 2020
Net loss for the year (AED’000) (33,802) (70,636)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (‘000) 608,254 608,254
Basic and diluted loss per share (AED) (0.056) (0.116)

23  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has issued guarantees relating to performance bonds amounting to
AED 1.7 million (2020: AED 1.6 million), from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise.

Estimated capital expenditure commitment at the reporting date amounted to AED 16.3 million (2020: AED 0.08
million).

The Group also has commitments of AED 4.5 million (2020: AED 6.5 million) on account of investments made in
securities and funds. The Group has to pay as and when calls are made by the fund managers/investee companies.

24  DIVIDEND

Proposed cash dividend

At the Board of Directors Meeting held on 7 March 2022, the directors proposed a cash dividend of AED nil in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil), which is subject to the approval by the
shareholders in the annual general meeting.

25 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has broadly two major reportable segments as described below, which are the Group’s strategic business
units. The strategic business units operate in different sectors and are managed separately because they require
different strategies. The following summary describes the operation in each of the Group’s reportable segments:
Manufacturing segment includes cement, paper sacks and ropes products.

Investment segment includes investment and cash management for the Group’s own account.

Investment segment is organised into two business units as follows:
e Investment and letting out properties in UAE.
e Investment in public and private equities and funds, mainly in GCC and Asia.

The above segments are the basis on which the management monitors the operating results of these segments for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Transactions between segments
are eliminated on consolidation.
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25 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Manufacturing
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross loss
Miscellaneous income
Expenses

Net segment results

Investment

Income/(loss) from investment in private and public

equities and funds

Impairment loss on investment properties

Income from investment properties
Depreciation

Net segment results

Finance costs
Finance expense
Unallocated expenses - Head office

Loss for the year

Other information

At 31 December 2021

Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Depreciation

Capital expenditure

At 31 December 2020

Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Depreciation

Capital expenditure

2021
AED’000

493,894
(501,165)

(7,271)
2,903
(15,296)

(19,664)

13,500

13,500

6,024
(8,815)

10,709

(12,447)
(12,406)

(33,802)

Manufacturing Investment

AED’000 AED’000
1,336,037 496,580
513,843 403
69,777 8,815
16,157 13,274

Manufacturing Investment
AED’000 AED’000
1,413,883 456,781
546,319 3,744
69,296 8,794
34,045 9,914

2020
AED 000

431,627

(436,989)

(5,362)
2,887
(14,853)

(17,328)

(4,511)
(11,325)

(15,836)

1,053
(8,794)

(23,577)

(17,543)
(2,519)
(9,669)

(70,636)

Total
AED’000

1,832,617
514,246
78,592

29,431

Total
AED’000

1,870,664

550,063

78,090

43,959
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25 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical information
The following table presents revenue, asset and liability information regarding geographic segments for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

At 31 December 2021 Domestic International Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Revenue 375,745 118,149 493,894
Investment income 2,234 8,475 10,709
At 31 December 2020 Domestic International Total
AED 000 AED 000 AED’000
Revenue 335,508 96,119 431,627
Investment income (5,084) (1,230) (6,314)
At 31 December 2021 Domestic International Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Assets 1,705,809 126,808 1,832,617
Liabilities 402,749 111,497 514,246
Capital expenditure 25,132 4,299 29,431
At 31 December 2020 Domestic International Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Assets 1,760,911 109,753 1,870,664
Liabilities 441,770 108,294 550,064
Capital expenditure 41,938 2,021 43,959

26 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significant influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions
are approved by the Group’s management and mutually agreed with the related parties.

Compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Short term employee benefits and end of service benefits 8,173 8,293
Number of key management personnel 16 16

Director’s fees (note below) - -
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26 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

At the Board of Directors meeting held on 7 March 2022, the directors proposed an appropriation for the directors’
fee amounting to AED nil for the year ended 31 December 2021 which is subject to the approval by the shareholders
in the annual general meeting. At the Annual General Meeting held on 30 March 2021, the shareholders approved the
directors’ fee amounting to AED nil for the year ended 31 December 2020.

There are no related party transactions during the year except mentioned above and there are no balances due to / due
from related parties as on 31 December 2021.

27  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables (excluding advances & prepayments) (Note 14) 173,332 177,898
Cash and bank balances (Note 15) 13,795 26,643
187,127 204,541
FVPTL financial assets (Note 12) 33,660 22,651
FVTOCI financial assets (Note 12) 164,563 125,614
385,350 352,806
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables (excluding advance rent and advances) (Note 16) 105,787 97,384
Borrowings (Note 17) 379,897 425,121
485,684 522,505

28  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. The financial assets
exposed to credit risk are as follows:

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date was:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Trade receivables (less provision for impairment loss) 168,684 172,269
Deposits and other receivables 4,648 5,630
Cash at banks 13,252 26,206
186,584 204,105
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28  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk for other financial assets and trade receivables at the reporting date by
geographic region was:

2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
Domestic 164,075 182,958
Other regions 22,509 21,147
186,584 204,105

Impairment losses
The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by setting credit limits for individual customers and
monitoring outstanding receivables.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on a credit rating and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved
by the Group annually and monitoring outstanding receivables.

Expected credit loss assessment

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to measure expected credit losses. The Group uses an
allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables. Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate” method based
on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. The methodology
for the calculation of ECL is the same as described in the last annual financial statements.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at
31 December 2021:

Allowances for

Gross expected credit
value losses Expected
2021 2021 credit loss
AED’000 AED’000 (ECL)
Secured trade receivables 108,343 - 0.00%
Unsecured trade receivables 64,407 4,066 6.31%
Specific provision on trade receivable 2,161 2,161 100.00%
174,911 6,227
Allowances for
Gross expected credit
value losses Expected
2020 2020 credit loss
AED’000 AED’000 (ECL)
Secured trade receivables 126,740 - 0.00%
Unsecured trade receivables 50,337 4,808 9.56%
Specific provision on trade receivable 1,429 1,429 100.00%
178,506 6,237

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three years. These rates are multiplied by scalar
factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
Scalar factors are based on actual and forecast GDP of respective countries in which the Group operates.
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28  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

At 31 December 2021

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Payable against construction of property,
plant and equipment/Investment property
Bank borrowings

At 31 December 2020

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Payable against construction of property,
plant and equipment/Investment property
Bank borrowings

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date.

Interest rate risk

Carrying
amount
AED’000

104,756

1,638
379,897

486,291

Carrying
amount
AED’000

81,283

16,206
425,121

522,610

Contractual
cash flows
AED’000

104,756

1,638
389,460

495,854
Contractual

cash flows
AED’000

81,283

16,206
443,796

541,285

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities

Less than More than
1 year 1 year
AED’000 AED °000

104,756 -
1,638 -
272,062 117,398
378,456 117,398
Less than More than
1 year 1 year
AED 000 AED 000
81,283 -
16,206 -
250,251 193,545
347,740 193,545
2021 2020
AED’000 AED’000
508 508
65,283 114,442

314,596 310,679
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28  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and
borrowings. The Group’s policy is to keep upto 25% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest. To manage this, the
Group enters into fixed rate loan, Bonds and interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals,
the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional
principal amount.

Contractual cash flows
AED’000

Lessthan 1year  More than 1 year

31 December 2021 Nominal Amount 266,021 113,876
Fair value assets (liabilities) 272,062 117,398
31 December 2020 Nominal Amount 241,815 183,306
Fair value assets (liabilities) 250,251 193,545

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed interest rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the reporting date would have
increased/(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Profit or loss

100 bp 100 bp
Increase decrease
AED’000 AED’000
31 December 2021 (3,146) 3,146

31 December 2020 (3,107) 3,107

Equity price risks
The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from quoted investments. Refer note 12 for the equity price
sensitivity analysis of these investments.

Fair values
The management of the Group believes that fair value of its financial assets and liabilities are not materially
different from the carrying amount at the reporting date. Also refer notes 12 and 17.

Capital Risk Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Capital
comprises share capital, reserves, fair value reserves and accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
capital is measured at AED 1,318,371 thousand (2020: AED 1,320,601 thousand).
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28  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital Risk Management (continued)

1 January Cash Cash Other 31 December
2021 inflows outflows changes 2021
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Short term loan 183,059 376,964 (352,757) - 207,266
Term loans 242,062 - (69,431) - 172,631
425,121 376,964 (422,188) - 379,897
1 January Cash Cash Other 31 December
2020 inflows outflows changes 2020
AED 000 AED’000 AED’ 000 AED 000 AED 000
Short term loan 274,995 440,188 (482,124) (50,000) 183,059
Term loans 254,184 8,987 (71,109) 50,000 242,062
529,179 449,175 (553,233) - 425,121

29 MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its nonperformance risk.

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets and
long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price —
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:
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29  MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market. The fair values are based on market price at the
valuation date. The Group’s investment in held for trading quoted equity securities are classified in this category.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived
from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted market prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less active; broker
quotes; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market
data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation techniques include inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between
the instruments.

In certain cases, the valuation is also determined based on fund manager valuation reports and project progress reports.
The Group’s investment in unquoted equity securities and funds are classified in this category. Generally, a change
in underlying comparative data used for estimating fair value is accompanied by change in the fair value.

The management has reviewed fair value of investments at FVTOCI and accordingly, a fair valuation gain of
AED 30,104 thousand has been recorded during the current year in other comprehensive income (2020:
loss AED 22,545 thousand).

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED 000
At 31 December 2021
Financial Asset
Investments carried at FVTOCI 135,561 - 29,002 164,563
Investments carried at FVTPL 33,660 - - 33,660
Non Financial Asset
Investment properties - - 397,533 397,533
169,221 - 426,535 595,756
At 31 December 2020
Financial Asset
Investments carried at FVTOCI 100,610 - 25,004 125,614
Investments carried at FVTPL 22,651 - - 22,651
Non Financial Asset
Investment properties - - 407,725 407,725
123,261 - 432,729 555,990
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30  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Investment in securities

Investments are classified as either investments carried at FVTOCI or fair value through profit or loss. In judging
whether investments are held for trading or investments carried at FVTOCI, the management has considered the
detailed criteria for determination of such classification as detailed in accounting policies. The management is
satisfied that its investments in securities are appropriately classified as either investments carried at FVTOCI or fair
value through profit or loss. Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:

Recent arm’s length market transactions;
e  Current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;

The expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for the items and with similar terms and risk
characteristics; or

e  Other valuation models

Estimate of fair value of financial instruments

The management uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of certain types of financial instruments. Note 29 provides detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of financial instruments, as well as the detailed sensitivity
analysis for these assumptions.

Estimating useful lives of investment properties and own-use property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its investment
properties and property, plant and equipment. The Group has carried out a review of the residual values and useful
lives as at 31 December 2021 to assess the reasonableness of such estimates. Management has not highlighted any
requirement for an adjustment to the residual lives and remaining useful lives of the assets for the current or future
periods.

Provision for obsolete inventory

The Group reviews its inventory to assess loss on account of obsolescence and any write down for net realizable value
adjustment on a regular basis. In determining whether a provision for obsolescence should be recorded in profit and
loss, the Group makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is any future
saleability of the product and the net realizable value for such product. Provision for net realizable value write down
is made where the net realizable value is less than cost based on best estimates by management. The provision for
obsolescence of inventory is based on its ageing and the past trend of consumption.

Impairment losses on receivables

The Group reviews its receivables to assess impairment at least on an annual basis. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables. In determining whether impairment losses should be recognised in profit and loss,
the Group makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows. Accordingly, an allowance for impairment is made in accordance with ‘expected
credit loss” (ECL) model. This will requires considerable judgment about how the changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and investment properties to assess impairment, if there is an
indication of impairment. In determining whether impairment losses should be recognised in profit or loss, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a reduction in the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Accordingly, provision for impairment is made where
there is an identified loss event or condition which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment and investment properties.

31 SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

During the year, the Group made social contributions of AED 583 thousand (2020: 426 thousand).
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32 IMPACT OF COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, Covid-19 was declared as pandemic by the World Health Organization and several variants of
the virus are mutating continuously causing disruptions to businesses and economic activities. Fiscal and monetary
authorities, both domestic and international, have announced various support measures across the globe to counter
possible adverse implications. The Group will continue to closely monitor as the situation progresses and has activated
its business continuity planning and other risk management practices to manage the potential business operations
disruption and financial performance in 2021. COVID-19 has brought about uncertainties in the global economic
environment. In light of the rapidly escalating situation, the Group has considered whether any adjustments and
changes in judgments, estimates and risk management are required to be considered and reported in the financial
statements.

Whilst it is challenging now, to predict the full extent and duration of its business and economic impact, the Group’s
management carried out an impact assessment on the overall Group’s operation and business aspects including factors
like supply chain, travel restrictions, oil prices, product demand, etc. and concluded that, as of the issuance date of
these financial statements, no significant changes are required to the judgements and key estimates. However, in
view of the current uncertainty, any future change in the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future years. As the
situation is rapidly evolving with future uncertainties, management will continue to assess the impact based on
prospective developments.

Below are the key assumptions about the future and other key sources of estimation that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the financial statements:

a) Recoverable amount of investment properties
Recoverable amount of investment properties is inherently subjective due to the unique characteristics of each
property, its location, expected yield, rental growth rate and discount rates reflecting continued uncertainty. Based on
the impairment assessments carried out by the management, the recoverable amount of investment properties are not
less than the carrying value (note.10). The estimate of value in use for the recoverable amount was determined based
on independent valuation of all investment properties.

b) Funding and liquidity

In response to the pandemic situation, the Group continues to monitor and respond to all liquidity and funding
requirements through its plan reflecting the current economic scenarios. The Group believes that, as at 31 December
2021, liquidity position of the Group remains strong and its existing balances of cash and cash equivalents, along with
undrawn facilities will be sufficient to satisfy its working capital needs, capital expenditures and other liquidity
requirements as they fall due in the foreseeable future.

c) Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The uncertainties caused by COVID-19 have required the Group to reassess the inputs and assumptions used for 31
December 2021. The Group has updated the relevant forward-looking information with respect to; the weightings of
the relevant macroeconomic scenarios of the respective market in which it operates; significant increase in credit risk;
and assessing the indicators of impairment for the exposures in potentially affected sectors.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any significant change in the credit quality
of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. Since the majority of trade
receivables are secured against bank guarantees or letters of credit, management believes that the allowance for ECL
at the reporting date is appropriate.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group has performed a detailed assessment for possible indicators for impairment of its property, plant and
equipment, and compared the actual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 against the budget and industry
benchmarks and has concluded that no impairment provision is required in respect of non-financial assets.

e) Fair value of financial instruments

The Group has assessed the appropriateness of the existing valuation techniques in line with the volatile environment
due to the current market conditions and has concluded that there is no material impact of COVID-19 other than
changes to fair values which have been incorporated as at the year end.
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DATE OPEN HIGH CLOSE  VOLUME Value
12/29/2021 0.765 0.766 0.767 15.906.13 12,200
11/30/2021 0.764 0.764 0.765 13.071.90 10,000
10/28/2021 0.762  0.762 0.764 438482 3,350
09/29/2021 0.762  0.762 0.763 48.519.01 37,020
08/31/2021 0.761  0.761 0.761 150.185.29 114,291
07/27/2021 0.759  0.759 0.759 13.175.23 10,000
06/30/2021 0.751  0.753 0.756 71.121.70 53,768
05/28/2021 0.713  0.713 0.713 21.598.88 15,400
04/28/2021 0.688  0.689 0.689 3.628.45 2,500
03/31/2021 0.746  0.688 0.688 29.069.77 20,000
02/27/2021 0.745 0.746 0.746 72.075.07 53,768
01/30/2021 0.742  0.742 0.744 70.482.53 52,439
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W ETISALAT Emirates Telecom. Group Company (Etisalat Group) PISC

= FAB First Abu Dhabi Bank
m ALDAR Al Dar Properties

® ADNOCDIST Abu Dhabi National Oil Company For Distribution

W ALQUIDRA Al Qudra Holding

B ASM Al Seer Marine Supplies & Equipment Company P.J.S.C
= RAKCIC Ras Al Khaimah Cement Investment Company P.S.C.

® NMDC National Marine Dredging Co.
B ADIB Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank

B YAHSAT Al Yah Satellite Communications Company PISC

B ESHRAQ ESHRAQ INVESTMENTS P.1S.C

m TAQA Abu Dhabi National Energy Company

= ARKAN Arkan Building Materials Company
RPM Response Plus Holding PrISC

B AGTHIA AGTHIA Group

= JULPHAR Gulf Pharmaceutical mdustries

| ADSB Abu Dhabi Ship Building Co.

o WAHA Waha Capital Company

= BOS Bank of Sharjah

@ CHAESH Chimera S&P UAE Shariah ETF- Share class A- Accumulating

B RAKWCT RAK Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials

| BILDCO Abu Dhabi National Co. for Building Materials
B DRIVE Emirates Driving Company
W REEM REEM INVESTMENTS PrisSC
FH Finance House
ARAM Aram Group
= ABNIC Al Buhaira National Insurance Company
B ENF FOODCO NATIONAL FOODSTUFF Prisc
| NBQ National Bank of Umm Al Qaiwain
B FOODCO FOODCO Holding Company
m WATANIA National Takaful Company (Watania)
® Qi Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Co. PS.C
W OEIHC Oman & Emirates Investment Holding Co
# TNI The National nvestor PRISC
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® IHC International Holding Company PISC
B MULTIPLY Multiply Group PiSC
= ALPHADHABI Alpha Dhabi Holding PISC
B ADCE Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank
m DANA DANA GAS PISC
= ADNOCDRILL ADNOC Drilling Company PISC
® 75 ZEE STORE PrisC
FERTIGLB Fertiglobe plc
B PALMS PALMS SPORTS PrisC
m 518 Sharjah Islamic Bank
B ESG ESG EMIRATES STALLIONS GROUP P.1L5.C
m MANAZEL Manazel PiSC
EASYLEASE Easy Lease Motorcycle Rental PJSC
RAKCEC RAK Ceramics PISC
® SCIDC Sharjah Cement and Industrial Development Co.
m METHAQ Methaq Takaful insurance Compnay
W ADNIC Abu Dhabi National Insurance Company
m GCEM Gulf Cement Co.
= RAKPROP RAK Properties
CHAEIN CHIMERA S&P UAE UCITS ETF - SHARE CLASS D INCOME
= SUDATEL Sudatel Telecommunications Group Company Limited
= ADNH Abu Dhabi National Hotels Co.
® ADAVIAT ION Abu Dhabi Aviation Co.
B RAPCO Ras Al Khaimah Poultry & Feeding Co.
RAKBANK The National Bank of Ras Al Khaimah
FCI Fujairah Cement Industries
SICO Sharjah Insurance Company
| NCTH National Corporation for Tourism & Hotels
¢ CBI Commercial Bank International
B TKFL Abu Dhabi National Takaful Co.
m AXAGCIC AXA Green Crescent Insurance Company PISC
= EIC Emirates Insurance Co.
B UNION Union Insurance Company
| KICO AL KHALEE] Investment
ANAN ANAN INVESTMENT HOLDING P.1.S.C
m ORDS CGOREDOO

el il il il i



aaclimll dooiillgiiipull) a8 Ll 5 2

(dols Zaaliua S i)

Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co.

(PJSC)

ule dsias (logS> ol i o1,80) 2021/12/31 (5 LaS uadluall aSls gjos oly -2
219 L (oo 1 JI gl

as _QJ.AA" ,n.e.w&“ (W-TV . 1}

£o0xall . angS> SIS s1,8l oD Lusall
478,847,599 | 145,220,419 | 260,114,300 | 73,512,880 | _lww
122,093,942 — 84,681,846 | 37,412,096 | e
7,312,205 — 5,146,783 | 2,165,422 iz

608,253,746 | 145,220,419 | 349,942,929 | 113,090,398 £goxall

:2021/12/31 3 S &Sl Jlo Ll oo LiST ol %5 GeSlas il uadluall Gl .5

dganail] agaSJl pdLuall pw] | Jusbiso
% 10,21 62,096,759 S @l joe 20>l | 2
Slaiall a8 Ll 9
% 9,09 55,295,795 o st B
sSlaiz)l
Lus all L
% 5,51 33,532,313 pll ol xe ol 4
gl
% 5,34 32,484,350 63950l pllall @S, | 5
-:2021/12/31 3 9@ LoS aSlall anxx) (599 ua®luall o5 as8uSy oly .0
> pewll dac £ e .
Sslaoll aSslaoll e Lausall pgel dla
Ji by g0 ,
% 1,55 9,412,377 918 i 50 o0 JSI
% 9,94 60,510,008 212 @i 500 0 JBls I 50 (0 sl
% 21,41 130,177,856 120 oMo 5 0 J8lg all 500 0 iSi
% 65,74 399,833,940 23 s 5 0 isi
% 100,00 608,253,747 £ oazall

23

P.0.Box 2083
SHARJAH
Head Office




icliml il ) 5 5

(dole Laslius 3S i)

Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co.

(PJSC)

‘oeiiwall SBMe laylgin liy B3155] a5 il olel,2)i .9

BLaaYlg slaiiwdl Jbrw 5 dxgiall &udl acsliw]g dwlbw izl e Jas=ll 255
ol ball Jle Bgdglly anlad¥l ol sl Jb 8 aS il dsdan)l oluludl _le 9.1
Slwball slaie] wilyy a5l avll duebill glinlly ol)loiwyl  dalsisll
o bl Jady b 9ol dac dszlioy duoladll gulinll dwbdl ol
alis o b JS9 Ly daleinll Jigadl $oboy 9230l lwl)ng a5l sxazdl ollatiw)l
ol @Ml oLyl puais N5 oo aSddl dwluy clas,Vl g 6,0Y1 Bladl guass

e8] admg aSuidl ol Than d,08)l &5l olelaV sk

&3] e BLaW agu¥l awd Jsiwe — aoMegl 100 psiss Iyl usi g
tHWL NS o aso Juolgill 0e8s &> o etiauall o BMe

065695666 wile

065683171 ussls

2083 )

www.sharjahcement.com oBMe axan lal,

Cpaiiaall

motasim@sharjahcementfactory.ae AVl

agoidlly ol 48, Lal" &S i) i)l ol olgisll
p.8.]— a8 Ll — dxy,ell dalois— "ducliall

12021 9 dsgasll amaxll e lgo e pi Ll anll obLall oly
1295

L 5yb¥1 pulxe olelai>] 5 h0.2

S)b¥ Gubzo clelaiz] ) is 68 elllo janz uall ple fagull o

2016 plell (5 6,11 Sulxa) o SuuS dipes pi9 o

12021 pledl JM5 &Sl cdslo Ll dslgll cl>Lad¥ly a,dexll SlasVl ol . b

azgi ¥
12021 JM5 &Sl Jlall Guly o0 %5 oo Lishy aS,ill Ly cold Ll olasall s
RECTYRY

26

P.0.Box 2083
SHARJAH
Head Office




i ol 3

(dols dadluws IS i)

Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co.

(PJSC)

:2021. 2020, 2019 ploeVl algis &Sl LS cabosil dgus Sl &
%12.95 : 2019 dlgy cubosill dpus
% 11.75 :2020 &gt cbosidl] dguus
% 11.8  :2021 d,lgy cuboeid] duus

12021 JAS 1D yolai @,bgi as_ il lgy cold il ag,ISEVI olyslally gojlially oly . J
azgi ¥

25

sl %
B atd 4 m
< P.0.Box 2083 @
% SHARJAH 4
a, 6’ Head Office Q?
L on >
nt & Industri2



Sharjah Cement & Industrial Development Co. #&

(PJSC)

ol il 2l 5

(dole daslius 35 i)
2021 plal) daSoll s slaic]
998 &9
JGioYly  sedaill din) iy SVl Gulro g,
2022/317 ;44,1 2022/3/7 :ag,tl
adslall 4,18 01 6,1] juao cBISally ol 3l @i g,

7

202203/ g6 2022/317 =l

2y el 77N

(il Sl
"M':Hﬁ.ua
g MJWI

P.O.Box 2083
SHARJAH
Head Office

A
e
@)
3y

N\
ot
ent & Iﬂdusdm'é\0



SHARJAH CEMENT AND
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
CO. PJSC

......
------

“GROW SUSTAINABLY WITH
CONTINUOUS QUALITY IN
PRODUCTS, PROCESS

AND PEOPLE”

Sustainabllity

REPORT
2021

5. WWW.SHARJAHCEMENTS.COM




About This Report 1-5
= Scope of The Report

= Report Highlights 2021

= Message from our Chairman

About Us 6-14

e Our Group Entities
e Certificates & Accolades

e Our Value Chain

Sustainability at SCIDC 15-20

= Putting Sustainability into Context

= Listening To Our Stakeholders

= Materiality

= Our Sustainability Framework & Goals

Responsible, Ethical & Profitable Growth 21-31
e Our Economic Performance e Organisation Chart
= Production Performance = Our Board of Directors

& Efficiency = The Board Committees

= Good Corporate Governance = Our internal Audit Department

Health, Safety & Wellbeing of Our People 32-37
= Human Rights < Employee Training
= Our Human Capital = Employee Engagement
= Diversity and Inclusion e Occupational Safety
= Employee Attraction &

Retention
Environmental Leadership, Vision & Mission 38-40
= Our Environmental Vision = Our Environmental Goals
= Our Environmental Mission = Our Achievements
Corporate Social Responsibility 41
= Emiratization = Community Investment

N &~ G NN @ N =

e Local Procurement &
Supply Management

GRI Content Index 42-46

©®









Scope of the

YEAR

The report covers our
environmental, social and
governance performance
for the year 2021.

MONETARY VALUES

All monetary values in this
report are in Arab Emirates
Dirhams  (AED), unless
otherwise indicated.

CONTACT POINT

For more information about
this report and our
sustainability approach
and performance, please
contact:

Name:
Designation:
Email :

ENTITIES

All entities mentioned in
this report refer to entities
owned by SCIDC including
Sharjah Cement Factory,
Paper Sacks Factory, Gulf
Rope and Plastic Products
LLC and other Investment
Operations.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance
and economic impact
figures used in the report
are drawn from all entities
owned by SCIDC,
including Sharjah Cement
Factory, Paper Sacks
Factory, Gulf Rope and
Plastic Products LLC, and
other Investment
Operations. For further
information regarding our
financial performance,
please refer to our annual
report available on our
website.

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE

Our internal team precisely
created this sustainability
report, which was further
reviewed and approved
by the internal stakeholders
and management to
ensure the accuracy of
the information reported.
We chose not to appoint
an external party to audit
our sustainability report.
However, it remains an
option that we may
consider in the future.

COUNTRIES

The report covers our
operations in the United
Arab Emirates only, unless
otherwise indicated.

TERMINOLOGY

Use of the terms “SCIDC”
or “Sharjah Cement” in this
report refers to Sharjah
Cement and Industrial
Development Co.

The content presented in this report is a result of thorough stakeholder engagement and
materiality analysis, which is covered in the chapter titled “Sustainability at SCIDC.” We believe
that all the content and data provided throughout this report were represented with utmost
integrity, honesty, and transparency to provide our stakeholders with clear and accurate
insights on all our business activities and footprint.
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OTHMAN SHARIF

Chairman

| Message from Our Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and myself, | am
delighted to share SCIDC’s first sustainability report for
the year 2021. In this report, we share our efforts and
performance in the arena of sustainable growth, the
environment, our people and our broader social
responsibility.

We recognize our responsibilities towards preserving

the environment and have worked actively to remain It gives us the honour/to express

strategically aligned with the UAE Green Agenda our sincere gratitude to/H.H. Dr.
and the UAE National Vision 2021. shaikh Sultan Bin 'Mohammed

, ] o Al Qasimi, Ruler of Sharjah and
We contribute positively to these visions and Member of Supreme Council
directives by contributing to our local communities for his continuous guidance

and embedding sustainability into everything we do.
The company’s Sustainability Framework has been
aligned with the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals, United Nations Global
Compact and the Global Reporting Standards.

and support.

This report highlights our environmental, social and
governance performance and contribution to
national and global sustainability targets.



In our commitment to sustainable growth and greener earth, we continuously invest in
technology to reduce our carbon footprints by reducing coal consumption. UAE Environment
Law requires all cement companies in the UAE to use at least 10% alternative fuel in place of
coal from 2021. We are pleased to announce that we had already achieved that goal in 2019.
We have sighed an agreement with Bee’ah whereby Bee’ah will supply us with 73,000 tons of
alternative fuels from Q3 2021, allowing us to reduce our carbon emissions further. With this
agreement and other ongoing agreements with Bee’ah and other public and private
establishments, we will replace more than 30% of fossil fuel with alternative fuels over the next
two years.

We are working closely with Sharjah Municipality and the Ministry of Environment in keeping the
dust and other emissions in and around the factory well below the statutory limits. We also help
Sharjah Police to ensure safe and environment-friendly disposal of hazardous waste and other
contraband materials. We have planted more than 5,500 trees in the factory premises, and we
are proud to be one of the greenest factories in the UAE.

We have sighed a long-term agreement with Qatra Water Solutions LLC to recycle dry sludge
and wastewater generated by their water treatment plant in Sharjah. We have used 32 million
gallons of wastewater in our cement plant during 2021. We are proud to announce that we use
zero fresh water in the plant and the entire plant now runs on recycled water.

The company continues to support many charitable organizations and social institutions to fulfill
its corporate social responsibilities. For the development of Emirati youth, the company
organizes visits to the cement plant and provides regular training in association with various
schools and universities.

| would also like to thank the Fellow Board Members, Management and Employees of the
company for their dedicated efforts and devotion in achieving the company’s sustainability
objectives.

OTHMAN SHARIF

Chairman
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| About Us

Sharjah Cement and Industrial Development Co. (PJSC) (“the Company”) was incorporated in
Sharjah, the United Arab Emirates, in 1977 under an Emiri Decree issued by H.H The Ruler of
Sharjah and has since been registered as a public joint-stock company.

The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 2083 Sharjah, United Arab Emirates.

The shares of the company are
listed on Abu Dhabi Securities
Market.

As approved by the company’s
shareholders and Kuwait Capital
Market Authority, the company’s
shares have been voluntarily
withdrawn from Kuwait Stock
Exchange and 26th August 2021
was the last date for trading the
company’s shares on Kuwait
Stock Exchange.

SCIDC is engaged in the
manufacturing and supply of
cement, paper sacks and plastic
ropes. The Group invests its
surplus funds in investment
securities, private equities, and
properties.

The Group operates from
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates
and sells its products within UAE
and many other countries,
including the Middle East, Africa,
and Asia.




Our Group

SCIDC group is composed of four main business units operating across the UAE.
e SHARJAH CEMENT FACTORY - (SCF)

SCF has been the market leader in the production of its Portland cement and GGBS products
since the company commenced production in 1977. The company prides itself in moving
forward by fully understanding the aspects, including the technical and engineering principles
of both its products and its processes.

We specialize primarily in producing and processing Portland cement and Iron Blast furnace
slags into ground granulated Blast furnace slag for the construction industry. Furthermore, we
also produce Oil-well Cement conforming to API Specifications 10 A, Class A and G.

All our products are manufactured strictly in compliance with the relevant European and
American standards and are manufactured carefully and precisely by aptly using selected
raw materials.

We undertake strict quality control throughout each stage of the manufacturing process to
ensure that a consistent final product is achieved. The factory capacity ensures to meet the
market requirements and to offer a premier service to our suppliers and customers we operate
a dedicated fleet of bulk delivery tankers.
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Our Group

SCF Operates under ISO 9001-2015 Quality management System. We have also been awarded
ISO 14001-2015 for Environmental Management Systems, ISO 45001-2018 for Occupational
Health & Safety Management Systems and ISO 50001-2018 for Energy management Systems.
SCF is committed to promote the highest standards in health, safety and environmental
preservation and protection.

= GULF ROPE AND PLASTIC PRODUCTS CO. LLC - (GRPP)

Established in 1994, GRPP is the largest synthetic rope and baler twine manufacturer in UAE.
GRPP manufactures synthetic ropes under the brand name FALCON at its modern plant in
Sharjah, UAE. While incorporating state-of-the-art technology, all types of equipment are of
European origin. It is the first ISO 9001-2015 certified synthetic rope factory in the Middle East.
GRPP has a proactive approach towards the Health and Safety of its employees. Additionally,
their products are exported to more than 25 countries worldwide in the Middle East, Europe
and Africa.
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Our Group

= PAPER SACKS FACTORY - (PSF)

PSF was established in the year 1975 for the promotion of industries in Sharjah, UAE. PSF is ISO
9001:2015 certified and a leading manufacturer of multiwall, glued/pasted valve type empty
paper sacks for packing cement, fertilizers, chemicals, flavors, sugar, minerals and many more.
PSF has the most modern equipment of European make with an installed capacity of 120
million sacks per annum with up to 6 piles and colored print as per customer specifications. We
export our high-quality paper sacks across the Middle East, Africa, Asia and other overseas
markets.

= INVESTMENT OPERATIONS

SCIDC maintains a significant portfolio of Real Estate and Equity Investment in order to
generate a steady flow of income and capital appreciation.
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Our Value

Extraction & Procurement:

e SCF procures all their raw materials from local and
international suppliers. Additionally, Extraction materials
are also extracted from our own quarrying sites.

e PSF purchases papers from international markets and
other raw materials such as glues and colors are procured
locally.

MR PR < GRPP procures raw materials from local and international

markets.

Cement, Ropes and Plastic Products:

SCF, PSF and GRPP factories work round the clock and all our
products are manufactured at our own factories with none
of the manufacturing activities being outsourced.

MANUFACTURING
& PRODUCTION

Public & Private Sector Customers:

We supply our products to public and private sector
customers both locally and internationally.

CUSTOMERS

Investment Horizon:

SCIDC invests in real estate, shares and securities. All of
the real estate investments are within UAE. Investments
in shares and securities are mainly within UAE and other
GCC countries.

INVESTMENTS
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Sustainability at

Climate change, sustainable development and social justice are amongst the most pressing
challenges facing humanity today.

Governments and businesses are responding to these challenges by aligning their strategies
around global directives and initiatives that seek to minimize the impact of these risks.

Sustainable development encourages us to conserve and enhance our resource base, by
gradually changing the ways in which we develop and use technologies.

At SCIDC, we are conscious of our consumption of natural resources and carbon emissions and
work tirelessly towards conservation of natural resources and to reduce our emissions.

We are continuously investing and seamlessly integrating the latest technologies to reduce our

carbon footprints, promote recycling of all wastes, and lower consumption of natural resources
to leave a significant impact on our environment.
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I Putting Sustainabillity into Context

We refer to the following guidelines and frameworks to define our sustainabillity priorities.
Elements of each of these frameworks have been mapped to our focus areas, which are
presented in this report.

THE UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (UN SDGSs)

Sustainable Development Goals represent the world's most pressing sustainability issues. They
collectively outline a model for the future, where economic growth is achieved without
compromising the environment or individuals in the society.

This blueprint consists of 17 overarching goals focused on environmental, social and economic
global challenges that everyone in the global community need to address.




Putting Sustainabillity into

THE UNITED NATIONS GLOBAL COMPACT (UNGC)
The UNGC is a directive issued by the United
Nations that aims to encourage businesses
worldwide to adopt sustainable and socially
responsible policies and to report on their
implementation. The compact calls all
companies to align their strategies and
operations with universal principles on human
rights, environment and anti-corruption, and work
collectively to advance societal goals.

THE GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE (GRI)

The Global Reporting Initiative is an international,
independent standards organization that helps
businesses, governments and other organizations
understand and communicate their impact on
issues including climate change, human rights,
societal well-being and corruption, and
executing benefits for all stakeholders.

UAE NATIONAL VISION 2021

UAE Vision 2021 was launched by H.H. Sheikh
Mohammed bin Rashid Al Maktoum,
Vice-President and Prime Minister of the UAE and
Ruler of Dubai, at the closing of a Cabinet
meeting in 2010. The vision aims for the UAE to be
counted among the best countries in the world by
the Golden Jubilee of the Union. In order to
transform this vision into reality, the key pillars are
portrayed as six national priorities, which
represent the key focus sectors of the
government action in the coming years.

2

ABU DHABI ECONOMIC VISION 2030

The Government of Abu Dhabi announced a
long-term plan for transforming the economy,
including reducing the economy's reliance on the

oil sector and increasing the focus on
knowledge-based industries. The Abu Dhabi
Economic Vision 2030 establishes the current
economic environment and identifies critical
areas for improvement to achieve the goals laid
out in the Policy Agenda.



Listening to Our Stakeholders

We value our stakeholders equally and recognize that each group has different needs and
expectations. Therefore, we ensure to identify each group and devise effective strategies to engage
with them to implement their views to improve our overall business operations. We routinely interact with
our stakeholders through various communication channels, enabling us to receive meaningful feedback
from those affected by our business. The below table maps our key stakeholders, their main topics of
concern and how we engage with them.




Materiality

Our materiality analysis aims to point the most relevant sustainability topics of our organization. Internal
management across all factories was responsible for brainstorming and identifying key focus areas,
assessing their impact, identifying and implementing sustainable and long-term solutions. This process
involved the following stages:

WLy Research, Benchmark and Brainstorm
= |[dentify a list of potential material issues based on global
reporting standards, peer reviews, national visions such as
the UAE National Agenda 2021, Abu Dhabi Economic Vision
2030 and international directives including the Sustainable
Development Goals

N Impact Assessment
' : = Prioritized material issues around an applied stakeholder
/ mapping and engagement process and SCIDC’s
[II][II] sustainability focus
_— = Assess material topics to rank the most important issues
Management Ratification and Alignment
I | = Review of the list of material issues by SCIDC’s senior
= management and sustainability team

bg = Regular follow ups

H+HHHH List of material issues:
C— = Ethics and compliance = Employee development

= Market expansion = Water management

= Product innovation = Energy management
= Customer relations and satisfaction ® Waste management
= Health and Safety e GHG emissions

= Reduce environmental impact




Our Sustainabillity

Sustainability is SCIDC’s motto and core principle that we religiously follow in everything we do. SCIDC’s
sustainability management framework allows us to monitor and enhance our social, environmental and
economic performance. This framework stands on four pillars that take into consideration our business needs and
our impact on society, the environment, our workplace and performance.

Responsible, Ethical & Profitable Growth

We ensure our business is conducted in a fair manner that benefits all our
stakeholders by ensuring ethical and good corporate governance. We are
1r ﬁ contributing to the sustainable development of UAE and its people with:

| i i | = Reasonable economic growth = Customer satisfaction
— = Highest quality products = Complete Compliance with local
= Product and market laws and regulations
' development

Health, Safety & Wellbeing of our People
Our employees are the largest contributors to our success. We
strive to improve the health, safety and well-being of our people
with the following key goals:
= Respect and equality amongstall = Gender equality

people = Quality training and knowledge
= Continuously improve the health distribution

and safety of all our people

Environmental Leadership

\ SCIDC strives continuously to ensure that our operations causes no
harm to our surrounding living environment. Therefore, we ensure to
reduce our carbon footprint, minimize our operational waste and
water consumption. We contribute to our aim of greener planet with

_. ° the following key goals:
o o = Use of Waste Heat Recovery = Work with private and public
Systems, increasing the share of sector players for recycling and

renewable energy and alternative  safe disposal of waste
fuels to reduce coal consumption = Continuously invest in the state of

1

: = 7Zero waste to landfil and the art environment-friendly

: complete reuse and safe disposal technology for efficient production,
' of all plant waste distribution and use of energy

1 = Operate the plant with recycled and alternative fuels

' water and zero consumption of = Stringent compliance with all

' fresh water in the plant environmental regulatory

' requirements

Corporate Social Responsibility

In line with the UAE’s National Vision 2021 and Abu Dhabi Economic
Vision 2030, we seek to drive local economic development and
contribute to our local community with:

= Improved Emiratization

= Increase in local procurements

= Community development






Responsible, Ethical & Profitable

We conduct our business for the long-term benefits of all our stakeholders with ethical business practices
and adequate corporate governance. We are committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of the UAE and its people with our highest quality products and complete compliance
with laws and regulations.

2021 continued to be a challenging year due to ongoing Covid-19 restrictions coupled with significant
supply chain issues and multifold increase in commodity prices. Construction activities and cement
demand in the UAE continued to fall. Non availability of containers and exorbitant shipping costs
crippled our export markets as well. In addition, the coal prices doubled during the second half of the
year making cement production very expensive. Due to low demand in the local market, cement selling
prices remained low despite significant increase in cost of sales. As a result company reported losses
during 2021. The company however managed all other costs wisely and ensured that the company’s
EBIDTA remained positive during 2021. Company also managed its cash flows to reduce its debts further.
Thus the company was successful in maintaining the shareholders’ equity.

All other cement companies in the country also faced similar challenges and recorded significant
losses.

The company had a turnover of 494 million dirhams and a gross loss of 7 million dirhams from the factory
operation in 2021, compared to a turnover of 432 million dirhams and a gross profit of 5 million dirhams in
2020. Investment operations resulted in a profit of AED 11 million in 2021 due to higher fair value of
investments in securities, higher rental income and higher return on our investment in funds. The net loss
for 2021 was AED 34 million, compared to a net loss of AED 71 million in 2020.

Ex1



Our Economic

As a major cement producer, we play a significant role in the economic development of the
Emirates of Sharjah and UAE. Our 2021 and 2020 performances are highlighted below:

Particulars (AI\:EYDZin ) (:I;([)Z(r)n) Variance%

Sales 493.9 431.6 14.4 %
Cost of Sales (501.2) (437.0) 14.7 %
Gross (loss)/ Profit (7.3) (5.4) )
G&A expenses (20.9) (18.5) 13.4 %
Selling and Distribution Cost (S&D cost) (6.7) (6.1) 9.6 %
Investment income 10.7 (6.3) >100 %
Impairment loss on investment Property 5 (11.3) (100) %
Finance expenses (12.5) (17.5) (29.0) %
Reversal of gain on sale of assets held for sale - (8.5) (100) %
Other Income 2.9 3.0 (3.1%)
(Loss) / profit for the year (33.8) (70.6) .
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| Our Economic Performance

Trade & other

Term Loan

Non-current
liabilities

service benefits

Trade & other
payables
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Current liabilities

Share Capital

Statutory Reserve

General Reserve

Equity
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Our Economic

s decreases profit

e increases profit

-70.6
62.3 64.2
l ------ ------ -m— o
-...%—____—m‘ ______ |
Net loss Sales CoS G&A expenses S&D cost Investment Impairment loss on Finance Reversal of Other Net loss
EY20 income investment expenses gain on sale Income Fy21
property of assets
held for sale
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All three factories of SCIDC have been established on the strong footing of QUALITY. Our products
command quality premiums by maintaining very high standards of quality management and operating
systems.

People Quality

= All factory managers have more than 35 years of relevant industry
experience

= All departmental heads have more than 25 years of relevant industry
experience

= Support of young and dynamic teams of professionally qualified people

= Providing regular trainings to our people to expand their knowledge and
to keep pace with the rapidly changing technological innovations

Product Quality

= State of the art quality labs with latest equipment
= Ongoing and continuous testing of product quality
= Strict compliance with local and international quality norms

Process Quality

= Strict adherence to local and international quality standards (ISO, ASTM
and BSEN standards)

= Ongoing and continuous product quality monitoring

= Preventive daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance schedules for
all plant and equipment

= Regular plant upgrades to adopt latest technologies

=



Good Corporate

SCIDC realizes the importance of the efforts made by the Securities and Commodities Authority
("SCA") as well as, all the regulatory authorities.

We applaud their efforts in creating and adding control systems for developing the supervisory
and regulatory process in regulating the affairs of public joint-stock companies.

We strictly abide by and implement all the directives issued by SCA, which are based on the
fundamental principles of accountability, transparency, disclosure, responsibility and equality
for protection and balance between all company stakeholders and equality among all
shareholders.

The company has established standard policies and procedure manuals for strict application of

the code of conduct and accountability with respect to the application of the guidelines
included in the "SCA Resolution" for the year 2021.

£



ERE



Board of Directors

The Board of SCIDC consist of highly experienced members drawing on many years of industry

experience and the young dynamic members who bring in lot of passion to learn from the senior
members.

Our Board consists of 9 members of which 7 are independent and the rest are non-executive
members. During the year 2021, the Board met four times.

Mr. Omar Ibrahim Abdalla Ahmed AlMulla Mr. Rashid Abdalla Mohamed Ali Burehaima Mr. Khalid Mohammed Abdullah AlKhayyal
Member Member Member




The Board

A. Audit & Compliance Committee

1. Acknowledgment by the Chairman of the Audit Committee of his responsibility for the
committee’s functioning:

Chairman of the Audit & Compliance Committee acknowledges the responsibility for
effective and efficient working of the committee in accordance with the Charter
approved by the Board. The Committee met 4 times during the year 2021.

2. The Audit & Compliance Committee is composed of the following Board members:

< H.E. Dr. Saeed Abdullah Juma AlMutawa (Committee Chairman)
< Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Omar Salem AlKarbi (Member)

< Mr. Omar Ibrahim Abdalla Ahmed AlMulla (Member)

< Mr. Khalid Mohammed Abdullah AlKhayyal (Member)

3. Responsibilities and duties of the committee in accordance with the directives of
Article 61 of the Authority’s decision regarding the 2020 Governance Guide:

Resolution No. (3 /r.m) for the year 2020 issued by the Securities and Commodities
Authority regarding the Governance Guide confirmed the role and the importance of
the Audit Committee. It stated that all members of the Committee should have the
knowledge and experience in all aspects related to finance and accounting. It is the
most important committee formed by the Board of directors and it supports the board
with regards to the responsibilities entrusted by the shareholders of the company,
especially those related to the company's financial and accounting policies and
procedures.

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

1. Acknowledgment by the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of his responsibility for the committee’s functioning:

The Chairman of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, acknowledges his
responsibility for the effective and efficient working of the committee in accordance
with the Charter approved by the Board. No meeting was held during the year 2021
as there were no significant matters to discuss.




The Board

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises the following Board members:

= Mr. Khalid Mohammed Abdullah AlKhayyal (Committee Chairman)
= Mr. Rashid Abdalla Mohamed Ali Burehaima (Member)

< Mr. Omar Ibrahim Abdalla Ahmed AlMulla (Member)

< Mr. Ahmed Salem Abdulla Salem AlHosani (Member)

3. Responsibilities and duties of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The Nominations and Remunerations Committee supervises and sets policies and
procedures related to the structure of the Board of Directors and candidacy for
membership in the Board of Directors with the obligation to diversify between genders. It
also supervises the preparation of the policy for granting remunerations, benefits,
incentives and salaries for the members of the company’s Board of Directors, which are
commensurate with the performance of the company, and its employees. The
committee also defines the competencies required at the level of senior executive
management and training in the company.

C. Investment Committee

1. Acknowledgment by the Chairman of the Investment Committee of his responsibility
for the committee’s functioning:

The Chairman of the Investment Committee, acknowledges his responsibility for the
effective and efficient working of the committee in accordance with the charter
approved by the Board. The Committee met four times during the year 2021.

2. The Investment Committee consists of the following members:

= H.E. Dr. Saeed Abdullah Juma AlMutawa (Committee Chairman)
< Mr. Omar Ibrahim Abdalla Ahmed AlMulla (Member)

= Mr. Rashid Abdalla Mohamed Ali Burehaima (Member)

e Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Omar Salem AlKarbi (Member)

3. Responsibilities and duties of the Investment Committee:

The committee’s tasks in general include setting up policies and procedures for the
investments of the company and to supervise, monitor and effectively evaluate the
company's investment assets in order to achieve the desired returns on investment
and security of the investments. The Committee also establishes procedures and
standards for monitoring, evaluating and comparing performance results on a regular
basis and reports the performance to the Board of Directors.




Our Internal Audit

Our Internal Audit Department is an independent, objective assurance function reporting
directly to the Board Audit and Compliance Committee. The company's Internal Audit Function
is Co-Sourced to Aswaar Management Consultancy (AMC), a premier management
consultancy firm that focuses on providing boutique financial and internal audit services with a
view to support the business leaders on decision making and also on execution.

AMC consists of specialists from the Big four, financial, banking, and business backgrounds and
its leaders have the expertise for over two decades in the UAE.

The Board Audit & Compliance Committee approved the two years internal audit plan
(2021-2022) to cover all business units and focus on core business areas including; production,
maintenance, sales, supply chain and support service processes such as financial activities,
human resources, administration, corporate governance and compliance. Internal audit
reports are presented to the Board Audit and Compliance Committee.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department performs three different types of audits:

1. Compliance Audit
The compliance audit aims to review financial and operational activities with the aim
of determining their compliance with specific policies, procedures, rules and regulations.
The Internal Audit Department uses the risk-based audit approach to provide independent
assurance to the Board.

2. Performance Audit
Performance audit sets the benchmark for the performance of the company against set
goals and follows the industry’s best practices for performance evaluation and for
improvements.

3. IT Systems Auditing
The IT systems audit is designed to review the strengths and weaknesses of current IT policies

and procedures, IT infrastructure, IT systems change management process, IT security
measures, compliance with regulatory requirements and suggest improvements.

In 2021, the Internal Audit and Compliance Department conducted 11 audits as per the scope
agreed with the Board Audit & Compliance Committee.
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Health, Safety & Well-being of

As the Arabian proverb goes, “He who has health has hope, and he who has hope has
everything” we are aware that the work environment and the nature of the work are essential
infuences on health and safety, and they have been the key focus of SCIDC. As an
organization, we play a crucial role in taking care of and promoting the physical and emotional
health, safety, and wellbeing of our employees.

< Human Rights

Principles of Human Rights are guiding our relationship with employees, suppliers,
customers and the communities we operate in. We are committed to ensure that
all our employees are safe, supported and respected at all times.

We encourage all employees to report any possible violations of our code of
ethics through various channels in place.

We fully comply with the UAE Labour Law and the Federal Authority of Human
Resources policies laid out. This also extends to our subcontracted personnel. We
subcontract from companies approved by the Ministry of Interior and conduct a
special HSE induction training for new personnel.

Our suppliers and partners are also expected to embrace responsible practices
to create a positive work environment.
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Health, Safety & Well-being of

= OUR HUMAN CAPITAL

The value of an individual’s experience and skills is the repository of human capital that
any organization possesses. It largly constitutes education, skills, intelligence, training,
creativity and abilities. These attributes are important as it helps employees to perform
their jobs more effectively and efficiently.

Employees at SCF are a highly motivated team, their commitment has been clearly
exhibited in various large-scale projects executed in the last two years, all before the
targeted timelines.

Timely completion of projects like the 40 MW Captive Power Plant, Alternative Fuel
Firing Systems, Product Silos, blending plant and the SAP ERP project integrating all the
group companies in the last two years demonstrate the teamwork, skills, knowledge
and commitment of our people.

= DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

We have realized that diversity and inclusion is a business imperative that determines
what kind of a company we are, what we want to be and what the legacy will be.
Following principles are close to our heart when it comes to diversity and inclusion:

= Branding and Culture = No top-down approach
= Focus on increasing employee potential = Sense of belonging
= Inter-connect to positive change = Compassionate Leadership

= EMPLOYEE ATTRACTION AND RETENTION

The term “war for talent” was coined by McKinsey’s Steven Hankin in 1997 and the
terminology was popularized by the book of that name in 2001. It refers to the
increasingly fierce competition to attract and retain employees. We have managed
to attract as well as retain talent, as an organization by adopting the following

practices:
= A positive and pleasant work culture = Professional development
= Appealing living conditions and benefits = Treating everyone equally
= Technological advancement = Inclusion in decision making

e Career Advancement

Our average years of retention of employees is above 8 years.
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Employee

Employees Service in Years
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= EMPLOYEE TRAINING

Employee training would help employees
enhance their capabillities, eventually
increasing their productivity and
benefitting the organization. Employees
with high potential are identified and
opportunities are provided to learn "on the
job," which also helps in the employee's
career advancement. Classroom type
training are also conducted throughout
the year to improve people's knowledge
of advancement in technologies, product
development and finer methodologies.

2 I

Regular training is provided on ‘'Safety’
which covers, First Aid, CPR, Firefighting,
Training for Heavy Duty Drivers on Road
Safety, Safe offloading of cement, Safe
Tipping of raw material. Training on Cement
Technology both for manufacturing and
maintenance related and on various
Quality, Health, Environmental and Energy
standards are also provided. A total of 3054
man hours have been dedicated for
training activities during 2021.



Employee

A strong feeling of pride, commitment and higher level of employee engagement have
higher levels of customer satisfaction, profit and safety. We have always believed in
transparency, empowerment, employee development, listening to people to improve
systems, praise and recognition on safety related, project completion and execution of
special tasks. Our employees are provided with certificates of recognition and cash

awards to appreciate their efforts.

We conduct internal Cricket, Football
and Badminton tournaments and also
participate in League matches
organized by various sports
organizations in the UAE. Our
employees have actively participated
in the Rashid Al Leem Premium League,
RAK Badminton, and Sharjah
Municipality.

ES I

Our organization is blessed with ample
space, which has been put to best use
by providing various sports facilities
including a Cricket and Football
ground, Tennis and badminton Court,
Gymnasium and a Children’s play area
for the employee’s children.

In the interest of all the employees,
even senior employees were
encouraged to take part in the
matches and have keenly participated
in interdepartmental cricket league
tournaments.




| Employee Engagement

Additionally, we also have a walking
track and a garden to unwind and relax
for family members which is an icing on
the cake as this completes a full circle of
people’s engagement.



Occupational

SCIDC Adopts ISO 45001-2018 (OHS) management systems by British Standard Institution
(BSI). The HSE department of the company is headed by a full-time safety officer who is a
qualified International Diploma Health and Safety Engineer.

He is also a CQI/IRCA Qualified Lead Auditor for ISO 45001-2018 & Affiliated member for
IOSH also.

Our Safety record with graphs for five years:

The company is proud of its safety record and has consistently improved its safety
performance as shown in the five year graph below:

1. Accident First Aid and Lost Time Injury Analysis (2017 to 2021)

SHARJAH CEMENT FACTORY
LOST TIME INJURY FREQUENCY RATE (2017 TO 2021)
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2. Transport incident (2017 to 2021) — Show total incidents only

SHARJAH CEMENT FACTORY TRANSPORT INCIDENTS 2017 TO 2021
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I Environmental Leadership, Vision and Mission

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL VISION

As a leading cement manufacturer in the region,
we strive to be an eco-friendly organization that
plays a pivotal role in protecting and sustaining
the environment for the benefit of the current and
future generations.

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL MISSION

= Reduce the use of Coal and other fossil fuels

= Reuse all plant waste to ensure zero waste to
landfill

= Recycle water, plastic and other wastes
generated in the country in partnership with
public and private players

= Complete Compliance with all environmental
regulatory requirements




I Environmental Goals and Achievements

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL GOALS

= Use of Waste Heat Recovery Systems, increasing the share of renewable energy and alternative fuels
to reduce coal consumption

= Zero waste to landfill and complete reuse and safe disposal of all plant waste

e Operate the plant with recycled water and zero consumption of fresh water in the plant

= Work with private and public sector players for recycling and safe disposal of waste

e Continuously investing in the state-of-the-art environment-friendly technology for efficient production,
distribution and use of energy and alternative fuels

= Stringent compliance with all environmental regulatory requirements

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS
- Waste Heat Recovery System

e The company’s waste heat recovery system
was established in 2015 to generate up to 9 MW
of electricity from exhaust gases of the Kilns,
resulting in an annual reduction of 70,000 tons of
carbon and heat emissions into the atmosphere

- Waste to Energy

e Sharjah Cement Factory invested more than
USD 15 million in the latest technologies to
upgrade its plant to burn alternative fuels
instead of coal

e Sharjah Cement Factory has signed an
agreement with Bee’ah whereby Bee’ah will
annually supply 73,000 tons of Solid Recovered
Fuel (SRF) generated from industrial and
commercial waste in its landfill. This will replace
coal and thereby reduce our carbon emissions
and improve our environmental performance

e With this agreement and other ongoing
arrangements with Bee’ah and other public
and private sector establishments, Sharjah
Cement Factory will replace more than 30%
of fossil fuel with alternative fuels. This has
surpassed the minimum of 10% prescribed by
the law

- Recycling of Waste
e Sharjah Cement factory has implemented
“Zero waste to Landfill’ wherein, all waste

including green waste, ash and other factory
waste is recycled




Environmental

- Reuse of Water

= Sharjah Cement Factory has signed a reuse agreement with Qatra Water Solutions
where by Qatra will provide dry sludge and treated water from its water treatment plant

= The entire factory now runs on treated wastewater and we use zero fresh water in the
plant

= Sharjah Cement Factory has established a water treatment plant to recycle all
household and factory wastewater which is then used for plantations

- Safe Disposal of Waste

- We assist various Government departments and private companies in the safe disposal of
contraband, old paint, cloth, used oil and lubricants, construction waste, E-waste, tyres,
and other items in strict compliance with emission norms

- Green Plant

- Sharjah Cement Factory takes pride in being the greenest plant in the region. We have
achieved a feat of planting more than 5,500 trees inside the factory campus in
collaboration with the Sharjah Municipality & Ministry of Environment to increase green
foliage cover

- Efficient Generation, Distribution and Utilization of Energy

- We have adopted the latest and efficient plant load management systems like First Bus
Transfer (FBT) and Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) to ensure most efficient utilization of
electricity

- Compliance with Emission Norms

- All our plants are built with latest technologies to reduce the SOx, NOx, dust and other
emissions to the levels far below the limits set by Ministry of Environment

)
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Corporate Social

Emiratization

e In tune with the vision of H.H. Dr. Shaikh Sultan Bin Mohammed Al Qasimi, Ruler of
Sharjah, for the development of Emirati youth, we provide on-the-job training in
technical aspects in collaboration with local universities. We also facilitate factory
visits for schools and college students to get acquainted with the finer aspects of
Cement Manufacturing Technology

Local Procurement & Supply Management
The company contributed more then60% towards local procurement and supplier
management during the year 2021. We are consistently trying to improve this

percentage through our vendor development system based on the source of
quality products

Community Investment

= We participate in the Environment Day celebrations in the Emirate and continuously
spread the message of a greener planet through various events

= We sponsor various Municipalities in the Emirate to develop the greenery landscape
in the desert land

e The Company also supports many charitable organizations and social institutions
with donations to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities







GRI Content Index

GRI Standards

GRI Standard Disclosure Page Number(s), URL reference, or notes.

GRI 101: Foundation 2016
GRI 102: General Disclosures 2016

Organizational Profile

102-1 Name of the organization 2
102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services 7-9
102-3 Location of headquarters 6
102-4 Location of operations 7-9
102-5 Ownership and legal form 6
102-6 Markets served 22
102-7 Scale of the organization 7-9,22
102-8 Information on employees and other workers 33,35,36
102-9 Supply chain 14
102-10 Significant changes to the organization and its supply chain 18,20
102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach 29,31
102-12 External initiatives 3,38-40
102-13 Membership of associations 10-13,29-31
102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker 4-5
102-15 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities 1,19,29-31

Ethics and Integrity

102-16 Values, principles, standards, and norms of behavior 7-9

102-17 Mechanisms for advice and concerns about ethics 38-40

Governance

102-18 Governance structure 26-30

Stakeholder Engagement

102-40 List of stakeholder groups 18
102-41 Collective bargaining agreements Collective bargaining is nhot permitted in the UAE
102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 18
102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 18
102-44 Key topics and concerns raised 19

Reporting Practices

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial statements 2
102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries 1-2
102-47 List of material topics 19
102-49 Changes in reporting 1
102-50 Reporting period 1
102-51 Date of most recent report 1
102-52 Reporting cycle 1
102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the report 2
102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards 1
102-55 GRI content index 42-46
102-56 External assurance 2



GRI Standard Disclosure Page Number(s), URL reference, or notes.

Material Topics

GRI 200 Economic Standard Series

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19-20
103-2 The management approach and its components 26-30
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 31

GRI 201: Economic Performance 2016

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed 22-24
201-2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change 21
201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other retirement plans 20,32

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19-20
103-2 The management approach and its components 26-30
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 29-31

GRI 202: Market Presence 2016

202-1 Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender compared to local minimum wage 3,32-37

202-2 Proportion of senior management hired from the local community 3

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19-20
103-2 The management approach and its components 26-30
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 31

GRI 203: Indirect Economic Impacts 2016

203-1 Infrastructure investments and services supported

203-2 Significant indirect economic impacts

‘

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19-20
103-2 The management approach and its components 26-30,41
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 26-30,41

GRI 204: Procurement Practices 2016

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers 3,41

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19-20
103-2 The management approach and its components 15-17
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 31

GRI 205: Anti-corruption 2016

205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to corruption 31
205-2 Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and procedures 17,31-32
205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken 31-32



GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19-20
103-2 The management approach and its components 26-30
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 29-31

GRI 206: Anti-competitive Behavior 2016

206-1 Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust, and monopoly practices 32

GRI 300 Environmental Standard Series

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19
103-2 The management approach and its components 38-40
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 38-40

GRI 301: Materials 2016

301-1 Materials used by weight or volume 25,39-40

301-2 Recycled input materials used 39-40

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19
103-2 The management approach and its components 39-40
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 38-40

GRI 302: Energy 2016

302-1 Energy consumption within the organization 10,39
302-2 Energy consumption outside of the organization 39-40
302-3 Energy intensity 39-40
302-4 Reduction of energy consumption 3,39-40
302-5 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services 3,39-40

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19,39
103-2 The management approach and its components 39

GRI 303: Water and Effluents 2018

303-1 Interactions with water as a shared resource 20,39
303-2 Management of water discharge-related impacts 39-40
303-3 Water withdrawal 40
303-4 Water discharge 40
303-5 Water consumption 40

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19,38
103-2 The management approach and its components 15,39-40
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 39-40

GRI 305: Emissions 2016

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions 3
305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions 3,39-40
305-4 GHG emissions intensity 3,39-40
305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions 3,39-40




GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19,39-40

103-2 The management approach and its components 26-30

GRI 306: Effluents and Waste 2016

306-1 Water discharge by quality and destination 40
306-2 Waste by type and disposal method 40
306-3 Significant spills 34,37
306-4 Transport of hazardous waste 39-40

GRI 400 Social Standard Series

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19,32

103-2 The management approach and its components 3,33

GRI 401: Employment 2016

401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover 33-34

401-2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary or part-time employees 35-36

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19

103-2 The management approach and its components 11,37

GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety 2018

403-1 Occupational health and safety management system 11,34,37
403-2 Hazard identification, risk assessment, and incidents investigation 37,40
403-3 Occupational health services 34,37
403-4 Worker participation, consultation, and communication on occupational health and safety 34
403-5 Worker training on occupational health and safety 34
403-6 Promotion of worker health 34-36
403-7 Prevention and mitigation of occupational health and safety impacts directly linked by 36-37

business relationships

403-8 Workers covered by an occupational health and safety management system 11,34
403-9 Work-related injuries 37
403-10 Work-related ill health 37

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 3,14,19,41

103-2 The management approach and its components 34

GRI 404: Training and Education 2016

404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee 34
404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance programs 34
404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews 33-34

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-2 The management approach and its components 33

GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity 2016

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees 33



GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-2 The management approach and its components 3,32,41

GRI 408: Child Labor 2016

408-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of the child labor 3,41

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-2 The management approach and its components 32

GRI 410: Security Practices 2016

410-1 Security personnel trained in human rights policies or procedures 32-33

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19

103-2 The management approach and its components 32

GRI 412: Human Rights Assessment 2016

412-1 Operations that have been subject to human rights reviews or impact assessments 32-33
412-2 Employee training on human rights policies or procedures 34
412-3 Significant investments agreements and contracts that include human rights clauses 3,32,41

or that underwent human rights screening

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-2 The management approach and its components 18

GRI 413: Local Communities 2016

413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs 18,20

413-2 Operations with significant actual and potential negetive on local communities 341

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-2 The management approach and its components 3,20

GRI 417: Marketing and Labeling 2016

417-1 Requirements for product and service information and labeling 3,20
417-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service information and labeling 3,20
417-3 Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing communications 3,20

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 19

103-2 The management approach and its components 18

GRI 418: Customer Privacy 2016

418-1 Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data 3,18
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Address: AL HISN TOWER, 14th FLOOR, BANK STREET,
SHARJAH CEMENT AND (BORJ AVENUE), P.O.Box N0.2083, Sharjah — U.A.E.
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT Tel : 00971 6 5695666 / 5686102 / 5686103
CO. PJSC E-mail: scidcho@emirates.net.ae

Fax: 00971 6 5683171
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